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          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Good morning. I

          3  would like to introduce the members who are here.

          4  Margarita Lopez, and Christine Quinn. We are not

          5  voting on a bill today. Does everybody have a copy

          6  of the bill? Because we are going to go through this

          7  today to try to understand what is happening and

          8  where we are in the process. It has gotten to be so

          9  complicated that I really hope, in looking for this

         10  hearing to be a briefing hearing for members and for

         11  the people who are in attendance, so that we know

         12  where we are.

         13                 Jeff Haberman from the Legal

         14  Department, Karen Meara and Jennifer March from the

         15  Finance Department of the Council have been working

         16  furiously on this bill. As you know, the other bills

         17  sunset June 30th, the Council extended it until

         18  February 1, I think, in the hopes that we would be

         19  able to revise it. We were unable to come to an

         20  agreement with the Administration on anything, it

         21  wasn't that anybody was arguing, it was on both

         22  sides. We extended it again and how we are having to

         23  extend it again.

         24                 It is my hope that we will have a

         25  bill, it was my intention that we would have a bill
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          2  in this Fiscal Year. The purpose of this bill was to

          3  ensure a standard of quality, I believe that was the

          4  purpose of the bill, that was one of the reasons

          5  that I was so interested, was to ensure a standard

          6  of quality of child care for children in family day

          7  care, to be sure that sites were inspected, that

          8  enhancement activities were available to the

          9  providers, that we had some understanding of

         10  training and what happens within the family day care

         11  clusters, and we had gone through a whole long thing

         12  of trying to expand it, had family day care

         13  providers all affiliated with what we were calling

         14  for the purpose of the bill networks. The question

         15  of choice came up and so we said I think in the bill

         16  that if you weren't affiliated with a network, then

         17  ACD would have to assume the responsibility that the

         18  networks were assuming. That is our intention, that

         19  if a provider decides not to affiliate with a

         20  network, the network's function has to be performed

         21  by ACD.

         22                 That of course raises questions about

         23  cost, parental choice. These were major questions in

         24  it.

         25                 Along with that was the state's --
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          2  what do we say, reluctance? Or the fact that the

          3  State has not issued new regs, regulations affecting

          4  this part of child care, and we have heard for

          5  several years that they are about ready to issue new

          6  regulations and that has been one of the things that

          7  has kept us from being able to negotiate a new kind

          8  of atmosphere for family day care.

          9                 It has now been announced, I think,

         10  or we are fairly certain that the state is now

         11  planning to issue new regulations --

         12                 MR. DAMASHEK: The state, within the

         13  next two to three weeks, by a letter dated April

         14  5th, or a memo dated April 5th, they indicated that

         15  within the next two to three weeks they were

         16  planning to issue new child care regulations on an

         17  emergency basis. They were going to amend part 415

         18  of Title 18 of the New York Code of Rules and

         19  Regulations, as well as certain other sections

         20  relating to social service issues generally.

         21                 They in fact are having a workshop

         22  for people in the social service districts who deal

         23  with this issue this coming Monday up in Albany and

         24  then I understand they are doing regional, they

         25  intend to do regional workshops.
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          2                 It is not clear what those

          3  regulations will do, and we just at this point will

          4  have to wait.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But we have

          6  been told by people from the state that those

          7  regulations will not effect that part of the set of

          8  regulations that affect family day care. We have

          9  been told that is not the key issue.

         10                 MR. DAMASHEK: That the proposed

         11  regulations should not have an effect.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: As you also

         13  know, we have had a division in the supervision of

         14  day care between ACD and HRA, and OCS, and that we

         15  have, as more mothers are being called in to WEP, or

         16  the welfare to work program, there is more demand

         17  for day care. Which I think emphasizes the

         18  importance of having some supervision in day care,

         19  but which also then raises on the other side a

         20  fiscal question as to the cost, because they are

         21  planning to -- the Administration is evidently

         22  planning, although it is not in the preliminary

         23  budget and we didn't know that, planning to increase

         24  slots for WEP people. So that is another

         25  consideration.
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          2                 At our last hearing we had nobody

          3  from the Administration because we were anxious not

          4  to have to vote an extender, and anxious to get

          5  something done, we had a draft of the bill but they

          6  felt they didn't have enough time to meet with us to

          7  go over the bill and to understand it. And at that

          8  time the concerns were programmatic, choice, whether

          9  we are taking too much authority away from the

         10  state, one of the issues. There have been a series

         11  of issues that have been raised along the way. We

         12  have been negotiating this bill for longer than a

         13  year, so remember that, and it hasn't been an easy

         14  give and take. So they didn't come at the last

         15  hearing.

         16                 The other day they raised new

         17  questions about financial matters because they are

         18  planning to, I gather, they are talking about adding

         19  12,000 new slots for the WEP program. So now we have

         20  the financial implications and that has held up the

         21  negotiations more.

         22                 The Administration is not testifying

         23  today. But we are supposedly meeting with them

         24  today, I think, the Committee, and they are willing

         25  to sit down with our people and try to negotiate.
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          2                 So, what I think we should do now is

          3  have Jeff Haberman, the Counsel, run through the

          4  bill. I want everybody to understand what is in the

          5  bill.

          6                 I want us to keep in mind our basic

          7  intent, at least my basic intent was that there is

          8  supervision and inspections and some kind of quality

          9  control on the quality of day care that public money

         10  is providing. And after Jeff Haberman, then I

         11  thought Karen Meara would explain the fiscal part of

         12  it as best she can and then at least we will be

         13  better informed as to where we are, and

         14  unfortunately we do not have a final bill and we

         15  won't be able to vote today.

         16                 So, Mr. Haberman.

         17                 MR. HABERMAN: Let me start out by

         18  saying that I have been doing this kind of work for

         19  ten and a half years and this is the bill that I

         20  probably least understand. It is one of the more

         21  complex issues.

         22                 Okay, one of the things that the bill

         23  does is changes some of the definitions by Local Law

         24  45, in large measure because we wanted to make

         25  definitions where we felt more consistent with
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          2  federal regulations. In some cases state regulations

          3  seemed out of step with the federal regs, and so we

          4  wanted to be more consistent with the federal

          5  regulations. And of necessity, because of some

          6  things that were in the bill, there are new

          7  definitions.

          8                 For example, there is a new

          9  definition of child care certificates. Because now,

         10  one of the main elements of this bill is that, while

         11  Local Law 45 provided for enhanced monitoring of

         12  those providers who were affiliated with networks,

         13  it did not cover those providers who, or those

         14  providers who were being paid through child care

         15  vouchers or certificates. This bill expands that

         16  coverage to include that new group. Of necessity

         17  then we had to add certain definitions: Child care

         18  certificate, parent, et cetera. And you will find

         19  those in the early, first several pages of the bill.

         20                 For those of you who have Committee

         21  reports, the doctrine here starts with the Committee

         22  report and is followed by the bill.

         23                 One of the things that the bill does

         24  is it contains a recitation, at least the current

         25  draft, contains a recitation, on page six, it is a
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          2  recitation in this case drawn from state

          3  regulations, which simply indicates for all child

          4  care providers what the mix of children can be that

          5  you can take care of.

          6                 This may change, because one of the

          7  things you don't want to do is clutter up a bill,

          8  but right now it is in there because it was felt

          9  that this is one of the places that people would

         10  look at just to keep clear how many children, within

         11  what age groups they would be able to take care of,

         12  to provide child care for.

         13                 As did Local Law 45 -- let me

         14  backtrack for a second. Social Services Law 390 says

         15  that where the providers -- for providers of

         16  subsidized child care, you can with state approval,

         17  and if it is approved in the context of a plan,

         18  impose more stringent requirements on the providers.

         19  So, as did Local Law 45, this bill would have a

         20  plan, would require that a plan be submitted to the

         21  State and one of the things, one of the critical

         22  elements of the plan, would be enhanced inspections.

         23                 In addition to covering the children

         24  whose child care is paid for through vouchers, it

         25  would also enhance the inspections, particularly
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          2  with respect to in three circumstances: One, it

          3  would have --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Give the pages.

          5                 MR. HABERMAN: Okay. On pages 14 and

          6  15. The basic premise is that there would be eight

          7  inspections each year, including the USDA mandate

          8  inspections. But there would be an enhanced level of

          9  inspections in three circumstances:

         10                 1) for the first year in which a

         11  provider is certified to provide subsidized child

         12  care, they would receive 12 inspections, including

         13  the USDA inspections.

         14                 That same 12 inspection requirement

         15  would be imposed with respect to child care

         16  providers who have lost their certification and have

         17  been recertified, and it would also apply to child

         18  care providers who have been found to have violated

         19  any applicable law, rule or regulation during from

         20  the prior calendar year -- I am reading from the

         21  bill -- relating to the health, safety or welfare of

         22  any child in the provider's care.

         23                 It was felt that in these

         24  circumstances there has been a determination that

         25  someone has done something -- either there is no
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          2  track record with respect to that provider or it has

          3  been determined that the provider has done something

          4  wrong and needs to be better scrutinized.

          5                 Some of the other things or services

          6  that would be required either by a network, if there

          7  is an affiliation with a network or by ACS, the

          8  network would do interviewing of the parents for

          9  whom child care, subsidized child care is sought, to

         10  help compile documentation needed to make

         11  determinations of eligibility, to prepare

         12  evaluations of that documentation, not to make the

         13  decision on eligibility themselves, to provide

         14  technical assistance to child care providers to

         15  assist them in complying with all applicable rules

         16  and regs. Provide for monitoring of health care

         17  needs, and certain other things.

         18                 One of the things that the bill talks

         19  about to be submitted is the rate of payment and

         20  that is an issue that perhaps Karen is certainly

         21  better able to discuss than I.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You listed three

         23  reasons why they would be enhanced, and one of them

         24  is if they lost their cert and now they are getting

         25  recertified.
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          2                 MR. HABERMAN: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That is the

          4  second one. The third one is if they violate any

          5  health safety or welfare -- why would, aside from

          6  violating health, safety or welfare, why would --

          7  give me an example of why they would have lost this

          8  certification?

          9                 MR. HABERMAN: Perhaps because they

         10  were given some violations, either because they had

         11  too many children beyond what the registration or

         12  license permitted. Perhaps because there were

         13  health-related violations, lack of cleanliness,

         14  spoiled food, that sort of thing. Perhaps they

         15  didn't apply and now they are trying to get back

         16  into the system.

         17                 There are a number of issues. I don't

         18  have data, for example, on the reasons why people

         19  have lost their certification, but those are some of

         20  the reasons I suspect.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Does this bill

         23  come from delineation of a certification permanently

         24  (sic)?

         25                 MR. HABERMAN: I am sorry?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: A permanent

          3  removal of certification for this particular site?

          4                 MR. HABERMAN: This bill does not do

          5  that. That is being left to whatever processes exist

          6  within state law and state regulations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do we know if

          8  that exists?

          9                 MR. HABERMAN: I don't know, but I

         10  will check on that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And is it going

         12  to exist, a place where we are going to collect that

         13  information that allows us to know which sites? In

         14  case of consistent violation of child care occur, by

         15  this particular site, is there going to exist a

         16  place where the information is going to be collected

         17  to make sure that we do not make mistakes, giving

         18  permission to somebody to have this site, the

         19  license is taken away, five years later the person

         20  applies again and gets it? Do you understand what I

         21  am saying?

         22                 MR. HABERMAN: I understand that.

         23                 This bill does not affect the process

         24  by which child care providers are registered or

         25  licensed. That is remaining intact, and I don't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  believe that we have the authority, legal authority

          3  to alter that. I believe that is set out in Section

          4  390 of the State Social Services Law and we are

          5  preempted, but for this limited opportunity to

          6  impose more stringent requirements on subsidized

          7  child care providers. So that whatever processes

          8  exists for licensing and registration will continue

          9  to exist, and whatever processes there are for

         10  stripping someone of their certification, whether or

         11  not that can be a permanent denial of certification,

         12  those remain in place.

         13                 I will endeavor to find out exactly

         14  what those are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Ms. Meara.

         16                 MS. MEARA: My name is Karen Meara. I

         17  am an Assistant Director in the New York City

         18  Council Finance Division. There are several areas in

         19  which this bill has crossed implications for this

         20  City, several general areas.

         21                 One of them is, the bill requires

         22  that networks be reimbursed for the services that

         23  they provide. There are some services that they are

         24  currently providing that they are not being

         25  reimbursed for and there is costs associated with
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          2  those activities.

          3                 Secondly, as Jeff described,

          4  currently providers who, family day care providers

          5  who are not affiliated with a network, who serve

          6  children that pay with vouchers are not being

          7  monitored, which of course is one of the purposes of

          8  the bill. The bill requires that services be

          9  provided to these providers and their costs

         10  associated with that provision.

         11                 Additionally there is the issue of

         12  affiliated providers who also are accepting children

         13  who are paying with vouchers. The networks providing

         14  services to those providers are not being

         15  compensated for the services they provide to that

         16  family day care home from the voucher that children

         17  who are compensated with vouchers, and this bill

         18  requires that the payment rate include network

         19  services.

         20                 Am I confusing you?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         22                 MS. MEARA: Okay, it is very

         23  complicated.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What you are

         25  saying is at this point the voucher that a family
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          2  receives to take care of the child in a day care

          3  center is only utilized to pay for the services that

          4  the child receives in that day care center that is

          5  in the family?

          6                 MS. MEARA: We are not talking about

          7  day care centers, we are talking about family day

          8  care homes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Let me change

         10  the words.

         11                 MS. MEARA: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What you are

         13  saying is that the voucher that a family gets for a

         14  child to be taken care of in a family day care

         15  center, in a house of a family, it is only to pay

         16  for that. It doesn't pay for the supervision that

         17  will be in place through this bill?

         18                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is what

         20  you are saying? That that money at this point

         21  doesn't exist, in other words.

         22                 MS. MEARA: Well, part of it exists

         23  and part of it doesn't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you explain

         25  that?
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          2                 MS. MEARA: Yes. Right now if I go to

          3  a family day care provider who is affiliated with a

          4  network, not with a voucher, I go through the

          5  network, they place me with one of their providers,

          6  the rate of payment that that provider receives is

          7  reduced by $9 per week to cover the network cost.

          8                 However, if a family goes to a

          9  network and says I need day care and they find a

         10  provider that they agree to take the child, the

         11  amount of money that the provider receives is $9

         12  less than what they received through voucher, and

         13  that $9 is to cover the cost of the services that

         14  they receive through the network.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: May I just ask

         16  something?

         17                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: (Not using

         19  microphone.)

         20                 MS. MEARA: The networks have

         21  contracts with ACD, and there is a couple of

         22  different kind of contracts, depending on whether

         23  they are affiliated with a center or they are a

         24  voluntary network that just works with family day

         25  care homes. But they have a contract with ACS for a
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          2  certain number of slots.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: None of those

          4  children are on vouchers?

          5                 MS. MEARA: None of the children who

          6  go through the networks; however, those same

          7  providers are, even though they are affiliated, they

          8  are self-employed and they can accept children with

          9  vouchers, as well as accept children who are

         10  referred through the network as part of the

         11  contract.

         12                 If they accept a child who is paying

         13  with a voucher, that provider gets a higher rate of

         14  payment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This is the

         16  administrative fee you are talking about, in terms

         17  of the $9 they are not receiving.

         18                 MS. MEARA: Nine dollars.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It is more than

         20  an administrative fee. It is a placement service.

         21  The network places children into that family day

         22  care provider. The network advises the family day

         23  care provider, it's their as a mentor -- I mean, I

         24  think there are more services than just paperwork

         25  and administrative.
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          2                 MS. MEARA: And administrative, right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And their home

          4  visits.

          5                 MS. MEARA: Then in the system that

          6  you just described, correct me if I am wrong. Can I

          7  assume then, that a day care provider, a family day

          8  care provider, will be more inclined to accept

          9  children with vouchers, because they would receive a

         10  higher pay, correct?

         11                 Also, it would be, the family day

         12  care provider would be also encouraged to combine

         13  the population, if they want to benefit from the

         14  supervision and the technical assistance that they

         15  can get from the organizations that provide

         16  supervision, because they will benefit from the

         17  supervision at a lower cost.

         18                 MS. MEARA: That is always something

         19  that we have heard from networks, that that is a

         20  problem for them, because they are providing a

         21  service but they are not getting fully reimbursed

         22  for the services that they provide.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then this bill

         24  will unify and create a unified process.

         25                 MS. MEARA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In regard to

          3  the supervisors, the ones who provide the service,

          4  and also it would be equal to the parents that pay

          5  with their own money or pay with a voucher.

          6                 MS. MEARA: That's the idea.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Correct?

          8                 MS. MEARA: That's the idea.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But it becomes

         10  equal because if the provider isn't affiliated with

         11  the network and ACD has to perform these functions,

         12  and that becomes -- is that right? An expense that

         13  ACD has to --

         14                 MS. MEARA: There are two types of

         15  homes we are talking about. We are talking about

         16  homes that are already affiliated but accepting

         17  vouchers and getting the services of the network and

         18  the network is not being compensated.

         19                 So that is --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That brings

         21  parity.

         22                 MS. MEARA: So that is one issue, that

         23  is trying to bring parity.

         24                 There is also homes that are not

         25  affiliated with it at work that are serving children
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          2  who pay with vouchers, and the bill would require

          3  all of these oversight and monitoring and support

          4  provisions and how the administration decided to

          5  provide those services would be up to the

          6  administration, whether they wanted to contract with

          7  the networks or with some other -- in some other

          8  manner.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: There is a

         10  certain irony in this, in that we are saying that

         11  family day care providers that are not inspected are

         12  reimbursed at a higher rate than family day care

         13  providers that are inspected and enriched, right.

         14                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if this

         16  bill goes through, what we would do then is also

         17  make sure that we could put measurements in place

         18  that would make absolutely clear that every provider

         19  has to have supervision, correct?

         20                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Go on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         23  question that may be off the cuff here, in terms of,

         24  let's just say the whole family day care provider,

         25  are there different rates, and I am assuming that
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          2  there are, let's just say a child is handicapped or

          3  a child has a handicap, versus a child that is a

          4  regular child, versus a child with a voucher, maybe

          5  the numbers --

          6                 MS. MEARA: I don't know the answer to

          7  the handicapped question. There are different rates

          8  depending on the age of the child, and there are

          9  also different rates, depending on whether it is a

         10  family day care home or a group family day care home

         11  where there is a larger number of children and there

         12  is more than one provider.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So can you tell

         14  us what the fiscal implications are if we look at

         15  the current system?

         16                 MS. MEARA: The current system, right

         17  now there are approximately 3,300 voucher slots,

         18  vouchers that are used to access family day care,

         19  now through ACD and OES combined, and remember, the

         20  cost is not only the cost to inspect these homes

         21  serving children using vouchers, but also the cost

         22  associated with adequately reimbursing the networks

         23  for the services they provide to their affiliated

         24  homes as well. And currently we estimate that cost

         25  at approximately $3 million.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And now the

          3  Administration has implied that they are considering

          4  adding 12,000 vouchers, is that what you understand?

          5                 MS. MEARA: How many slots the

          6  administration expands I -- in the long term --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: There is a

          8  difference, isn't there, between slots and vouchers?

          9                 MS. MEARA: The Administration, on the

         10  record, has been saying that they want to expand

         11  child care. They said a number of times they hope to

         12  expand family day care because that is the easiest

         13  place for expansion. I have never heard a number on

         14  the record at any public hearing. If they were to

         15  expand it by 12,000 slots using vouchers, I think

         16  that additional cost would be approximately seven

         17  and a half million.

         18                 However, if you want to think of it

         19  differently, that is an estimate that is out there,

         20  12,000. If they were to add 1,000 family day care

         21  slots using vouchers, the cost of 1,000 would be,

         22  this bill would cost about $600,000 for each

         23  additional 1,000 slots. And I put very little --

         24  12,000 is an estimate, I have nothing concrete to

         25  suggest that that is going to happen, depending on
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          2  how they -- there is many ways to expand care, they

          3  absolutely do have to expand care if they are

          4  planning to put more public assistance recipients

          5  into the workfare program or into employment or

          6  training.

          7                 However, depending how they expand

          8  care completely changes the fiscal impact of the

          9  bill. I think a more important thing to note is that

         10  if they were able to expand 1,000 vouchers for

         11  family day care, the incremental cost for every

         12  1,000 is $600,000.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But that is not

         14  the cost of the actual child care, that is the

         15  effect of our bill?

         16                 MS. MEARA: No, that is the

         17  implication of this bill. Exactly.

         18                 And if they were to expand child care

         19  by going through networks, the network cost would be

         20  a cost to them regardless of whether this bill is

         21  passed. So, you know, if they really wanted to

         22  expand family day care and they contracted with the

         23  networks, they would have to pay the cost of network

         24  services, regardless of whether or not you pass this

         25  bill.
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          2                 So what I am saying is that to assume

          3  that this bill is going to create an enormous new

          4  cost --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: There is still

          6  a lot of money that has to be appropriated.

          7                 MS. MEARA: -- In the future, it is

          8  possible, but it is just an estimate and it depends

          9  entirely on how they expand care and how many new

         10  slots are created.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I need a point

         12  of clarification from you.

         13                 You make a statement that you

         14  understand that the Administration has to expand the

         15  available day care centers; that is your assumption,

         16  or --

         17                 MS. MEARA: This is something that --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Family day

         19  care, whatever you want to call it. I understand

         20  that it is two different things, but to me, to take

         21  care of a child, it doesn't matter where you take

         22  care of a child, it is the same thing.

         23                 MS. MEARA: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Going back to

         25  that, and asking you, in whatever way, shape or form
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          2  the Administration is going to deal with this

          3  problem of child care, whatever, you make a

          4  statement that you understand that this is going to

          5  happen. But that is your assumption, not necessarily

          6  that is the philosophy of the Administration, that

          7  they are going to increase the day care slots.

          8                 MS. MEARA: I would disagree with

          9  that. They have publicly testified many times that

         10  they have to expand child care, that they want to

         11  expand the work program. I believe the Mayor is on

         12  public record saying that he wants to get every

         13  workfare participant, I mean every public assistance

         14  recipient working in the next year, year and a half,

         15  and they many times stated that they needed to

         16  expand child care to make that happen. However they

         17  have been hesitant to put significant numbers on

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They need to,

         20  if they are going to put the mother or the caretaker

         21  to work, and up until now it has been an informal

         22  day care, which we -- the informal day care is the

         23  stipend and that could go on, but I think that that

         24  has proven to be unreliable, and therefore, they

         25  want a more reliable child care entity and family
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          2  day care is the easiest one to expand because it is

          3  in people's homes and it is done that you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's fine.

          5  You are speaking from your philosophical point of

          6  view and the way that you understand that this

          7  Administration should work.

          8                 MS. MEARA: But let me add --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But what we are

         10  saying is that we don't want any more stipends and

         11  we do want the family, we want to have it regulated

         12  and we also believe that the best way to expand

         13  child care and to regulate it is by having family

         14  day care that is supervised. So that is what our

         15  position is, all right?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's fine.

         17                 MS. MEARA: And while the

         18  Administration hasn't publicly stated a number as to

         19  how much they intend to expand care, this year and

         20  next year there was increased funds in the budget of

         21  OES, for day care. OES is the Office of Employment

         22  Services at HRA. So as they spent about 50 some

         23  million in 1998 on child care, this year they have

         24  $77 million in their budget and it looks like they

         25  are going to spend all of it.
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          2                 Next year I believe they have 96

          3  million, 95 million, 96 million in the budget. And

          4  that wasn't an initiative that was added this year,

          5  that was added two years ago to grow over time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So do you know

          7  out of that 77 million how much, what percent was

          8  stipends and what percentage went into some kind of

          9  supervised child care situation?

         10                 MS. MEARA: I wish I had the answer to

         11  that question, Council Member, I don't.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And is a

         13  voucher a slot?

         14                 MS. MEARA: Yes. And I hear someone

         15  behind me saying to the Administration.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Wait.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Clarify that

         18  because in my community I have people who call my

         19  office but they have the voucher but they don't find

         20  the slot. The voucher and the slot is not the same

         21  thing. The fact that we have vouchers out there that

         22  are issued and the money exists to pay for this

         23  doesn't mean that the slots inside of the places

         24  where provider services exist at this point.

         25                 MS. MEARA: That is a whole other
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          2  conversation and that is one of the reasons I am

          3  hesitant to estimate how many slots they will really

          4  expand day care by because of issues like that. But

          5  it is for another hearing perhaps.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

          7  get a better grasp on the potential cost of this

          8  bill to the ratio of that to what the Administration

          9  spends for the actual services.

         10                 MS. MEARA: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You mentioned

         12  that 3,300 voucher slots, potentially the cost of

         13  this bill would be $3 million, but how --

         14                 MS. MEARA: That is not just for the

         15  3,300 -- sorry to interrupt you. That also applies

         16  to 7,900 contracted slots.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, add that

         18  number, how much does the Administration spend for

         19  the actual services? See, this is $3 million but how

         20  much in the underlying services do they spend?

         21                 MS. MEARA: I am not sure, but I will

         22  try to give you a quick answer.

         23                 I would say approximately $75

         24  million.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.
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          2                 And can I just ask a very basic, and

          3  forgive my ignorance, can you just give the

          4  categories again, the homes that are affiliated with

          5  a network, there are homes that are not affiliated

          6  with networks, there are homes that are affiliated

          7  with networks that get vouchers? Or no? And there

          8  are homes that are not affiliated with networks that

          9  get vouchers?

         10                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So there is no

         12  relationship, you can get a voucher?

         13                 MS. MEARA: You can use a voucher to

         14  access any type of care. You can take a voucher and

         15  go to any provider.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Does anybody

         17  else have any other questions?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, I have a

         19  question. And maybe we went over this, but I want it

         20  for my clarity.

         21                 If you are saying that there are

         22  3,300 voucher slots now existing, hypothetically, at

         23  $3 million, which is allotted for that --

         24                 MS. MEARA: The $3 million is no just

         25  for those. It is also to cover some of the network
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          2  costs that are being provided to the 7,900 for the

          3  7,900 contracted slots.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          5                 There is a proposed increase of 1,200

          6  slots? Hypothetically again.

          7                 MS. MEARA: If there were an increase

          8  -- I think the incremental cost of any expansion in

          9  slots is $600,000 per 1,000 slots, so you know,

         10  depending how many they actually expanded, that

         11  could vary quite substantially, 12,000 would be 7.5

         12  million but it could be anywhere between --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Seven and a

         14  half million would be added on for the extra 1,200

         15  slots.

         16                 My question, and I think I was being

         17  corrected, if at the 3,300 slots that are available

         18  at this particular time, that are in existence at

         19  this particular time, you said there is an estimated

         20  cost of about $3 million at this particular moment

         21  --

         22                 MS. MEARA: Right, but I would apply

         23  that not to just those 3,000 slots, about 10,000

         24  slots because you have to include the contracted.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, got
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          2  you.

          3                 Now, the existing, you said there is

          4  going to be a proposed increase of maybe 1,200 new

          5  slots proposed for this voucher program?

          6                 MS. MEARA: We don't know. We know

          7  they intend to expand care.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just wanted

          9  to know how you came up with the number with seven

         10  and a half million?

         11                 MS. MEARA: Seven and a half million

         12  is, if you assumed they are going to expand care by

         13  12,000 slots, which I do not necessarily --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You just

         15  threw a number --

         16                 MS. MEARA: That is a number that we

         17  have heard, but I don't necessarily believe it

         18  because it hasn't been in any way officially

         19  articulated, and there are a number of different

         20  ways they could do that that would change the cost

         21  implications of this bill.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And my next

         23  question is, if at $17 per day per child, how are

         24  they coming --

         25                 MS. MEARA: Seventeen dollars per
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          2  child per day for what?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: How much does

          4  it take per job? How much do they get per day?

          5                 MS. MEARA: They get a weekly rate and

          6  it varies by the age of the child and the type of

          7  provider. For a four-year-old child in a family day

          8  care home, the market rate is $102 per week.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, okay.

         10                 What I really need to see is maybe

         11  the rates per child. You know, going back to my

         12  original question, a handicapped child, and --

         13                 MS. MEARA: Yes, I am sorry but I

         14  don't know that, about the handicapped child.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Because I am

         16  assuming that it would be a lot more based on the

         17  needs of the child.

         18                 MS. MEARA: Yes.

         19                 Jennifer just pointed out to me that

         20  this would not change the rate per child. The City

         21  has no control over the market rate, that market

         22  rate is set by the state. What this would change is

         23  whether the networks get reimbursed for the cost

         24  that they are providing for the voucher slots.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I just wanted
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          2  to emphasize that this bill unfortunately does not

          3  affect the rate that the networks get provided.

          4                 I mean, what I would like to see,

          5  since they haven't had an increase in the rates for

          6  a long time, but Jeff tells me that they are going

          7  to start a market rate survey because they have to

          8  have one in place by October of this year, because

          9  that is a different thing but unrelated to this

         10  bill, right?

         11                 MS. MEARA: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: But won't it

         13  include the rate of reimbursement if it is per how

         14  you are caring for that particular child?

         15                 MS. MEARA: Let me clarify something.

         16  The market rate is what is paid to a provider. If I

         17  have a voucher and I go to you and you are a family

         18  day care provider, that voucher is worth the market

         19  rate.

         20                 If I am a network and I have a

         21  contract with the Administration, some of that

         22  market rate goes to pay for the network costs. But

         23  in addition, there is additional network costs that

         24  are not part of the market rate and the City pays

         25  the network for those, and those costs are part of
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          2  the cost increase of this bill, that the networks

          3  would be reimbursed for services that they are

          4  providing that they are not currently being

          5  reimbursed for.

          6                 However, those are not part of the

          7  state market rate. I don't know if that makes --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, I think

          9  I really need to see the numbers. That is what I

         10  really want to look at.

         11                 MS. MEARA: Okay, we can get that to

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 If anybody wants to testify, please

         16  fill out one of these forms. Let's start with Donald

         17  Singer. And Sandy Socolar, why don't you come up at

         18  the same time. And Meagan Charlep, why don't you

         19  come up at the same time.

         20                 Where are you, Meagan?

         21                 Richard, we will have you go first.

         22                 Do you have copies of your testimony?

         23                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Yes, I just gave

         24  them out.

         25                 Should I begin?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          3                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Okay. I am Richard

          4  Oppenheimer, Vice President of the Council of

          5  Supervisors and Administrators, Local 1 of New York

          6  City.

          7                 Good morning, Chair Eldridge, and old

          8  friends and new friends and new old friends, like

          9  Margarita Lopez. CSA is very pleased to have the

         10  opportunity to speak to you today about family day

         11  care services. CSA is the union that represents over

         12  4,500 supervisors and administrators in the New York

         13  City public school system, and also directors and

         14  assistant directors of publicly funded day care

         15  centers.

         16                 We are unique that we are the only

         17  union whose members have responsibility for

         18  care-taking and educational needs of children

         19  beginning in infancy and continuing through grade

         20  12.

         21                 New York City's Agency for Child

         22  Development funded family day care provides the

         23  earliest support for many of the needs of our

         24  youngest children of New York City.

         25                 It ensures that immunization and
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          2  periodic health visits are in compliance with New

          3  York City's Health Department regs, studies

          4  consistently showed that children in high quality

          5  family day care have higher levels of social,

          6  cognitive and language development and are more

          7  likely to succeed in school.

          8                 This past year, New York City

          9  implemented universal pre-k, which included

         10  non-Board of Education settings, including the ACD

         11  funded system.

         12                 Some of these programs are providing

         13  the additional hours of care that working parents

         14  need.

         15                 Nuestros Ninos, of which I am the

         16  Director of the Family Day Care Program, is

         17  providing pre-K with family day care "wrap around",

         18  which has been cited as a model of support.

         19                 None of this would be possible in New

         20  York City without Public Law 45, which the City

         21  Council passed to safeguard and support the ACD

         22  funded family day care system.

         23                 Intro. 291 builds upon this important

         24  legislation. It rids us -- well, it does if we get

         25  there -- of the one-year sunset by making the law
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          2  permanent. It provides for the ACD funded system at

          3  actual cost of care, like we have for our ACD funded

          4  group day care centers, instead of a frozen figure

          5  of $17.06, which has been in place since 1992, and

          6  which is less than half of the average cost back in

          7  1992.

          8                 As you may recall, prior to 1992 ACD

          9  centers and ACD family day care programs were always

         10  paid the actual program cost. Recognizing that these

         11  critically important child care services could not

         12  function adequately, if they were only partially

         13  funded.

         14                 Nonetheless, in 1992, the City made

         15  an unprecedented change in this policy saddling the

         16  ACD family day care programs with an arbitrary flat

         17  rate of $17.06 per week.

         18                 That was less than half of the $35

         19  per week, which was the average payment rate

         20  prevailing at the time, and there was no comparable

         21  reduction in the services these child care programs

         22  were required to provide.

         23                 We know that there is enough child

         24  care funding available to ACD and OES to enable the

         25  City to cover the $975,000 to make Public Law 45
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          2  permanent and provide for the actual cost of care

          3  and still increase the number of children in

          4  ACD-funded day care programs.

          5                 The bottom line principle, friends,

          6  is a quality support system for our children that

          7  can't be compromised.

          8                 CSA asks that the City Administration

          9  and the City Council act without delay to designate

         10  a joint working group to review the actual program

         11  cost entailed in carrying out the responsibilities

         12  that these family day care programs are currently

         13  assigned and implement an appropriate payment rate

         14  that covers the cost.

         15                 Such a move to redress this

         16  underpayment and understaffing is long overdue. It

         17  is in the City's interest to start paying the new

         18  rate without delay, ensuring that it is in place

         19  when the state conducts the market rate surveys now

         20  required of it. That will enable the City to draw on

         21  federal and state child care funds to cover most of

         22  the new permanent rate.

         23                 Intro. 291 also extends coverage to

         24  all children in publicly subsidized family day care,

         25  which will help bring New York City into conformity
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          2  with the federal child care block grant requirement

          3  that all providers receiving child care funds must

          4  be certified as being in compliance with all

          5  applicable laws and regulations.

          6                 Currently we have no way of knowing

          7  if providers paid by ACD vouchers and OES

          8  Training-related Expenses, TREs, are in compliance

          9  with state family day care standards, and qualify to

         10  care for subsidized children.

         11                 What we hear from our CSA members who

         12  direct ACD-funded day care programs, is that where

         13  their staff have gone to visit registered providers

         14  who have applied to be attached to their programs

         15  and care for subsidized children, they find that

         16  four out of five of these "regulated providers" are

         17  not in compliance with FDC standards and

         18  requirements.

         19                 Now, we have our own at Nuestros

         20  Ninos, we are under a board of directors, a

         21  sponsoring board, we have our own sponsoring board

         22  standards and for a family day care provider to be

         23  affiliated, we have to filter through these

         24  providers to come up with those providers that need

         25  our standards, which therefore meet New York City
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          2  standards, which therefore, of course, would also

          3  meet the state standards.

          4                 And we find that at least one-third

          5  of them are totally unsuitable to care for young

          6  children.

          7                 ACD responded to this situation in

          8  October of '98 by implementing a family day care

          9  initiative with OES. Now, this we haven't addressed

         10  yet this morning, to provide vouchers through its

         11  system, to 44 contracted programs that had responded

         12  to ACD's expansion survey.

         13                 This initiative called for a family

         14  day care expansion through vouchers, with payments

         15  to family day care programs at the same rate that

         16  they are paid for their ACD family day care contract

         17  children, which was that 1706 figure.

         18                 Begin and Job centers were supposed

         19  to do an October '98 call in to clients who hadn't

         20  found child care. That particular call in never

         21  happened. Only a handful of children have been

         22  serviced, no program received reimbursement.

         23                 On March 8th, Maria Vandor, the ACD

         24  Commissioner, sent a letter to the 44 participating

         25  programs, announcing that 6,000 clients would be
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          2  called in to Begin and Job Centers on the week -- I

          3  have to correct what is written here -- on the week

          4  of March 22nd, '99, and it was only that week. We

          5  are grateful that Begin and Job Centers staffs

          6  finally know about the initiative, received forms,

          7  have been trained and that the parents are beginning

          8  to help. And for that week they contacted us, the

          9  child care supervisors at Begin Centers actually

         10  called us up to tell us about the forms that we have

         11  been faxing to them since October, and every time

         12  they got one they didn't know what they were.

         13                 At that particular point they were

         14  communicating to us and said that they would be

         15  working with us, but it turns out, and seems, and

         16  maybe you can give us some clarification, it was

         17  only for one week, and that HRA was seeing it as a

         18  pilot.

         19                 Well, if it was a pilot, it needs to

         20  be continued. We hope that this initiative will be a

         21  success and the only way it can be a success is if

         22  it continues.

         23                 And we also need reimbursement. We

         24  haven't received a penny of reimbursement. However,

         25  we are seeking your support in following through to
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          2  see that these participating programs get

          3  reimbursement.

          4                 Nuestros Ninos has 20 clients who

          5  went through this system, 11 of whom the system

          6  recognized as being Initiative clients. And I don't

          7  know how many they had but that is a huge percentage

          8  of the ones, because it was only like 15 I think

          9  that they recognized as being Initiative clients in

         10  the City of New York, or a little bit more than

         11  that, and no program, and we haven't received a

         12  penny, and now we are getting for that one week

         13  additional clients and next week, on Monday,

         14  beginning Monday, Nuestros Ninos has five new

         15  clients, of which we don't know if any of these

         16  clients will be in Initiative, and we don't know if

         17  we are going to receive a penny of reimbursement.

         18  And we have an assistant director who has been hired

         19  specifically to deal with voucher support through

         20  this initiative, and we are not receiving a penny to

         21  pay for her salary.

         22                 We gambled that the City of New York

         23  meant what it said, and we expect that it will be

         24  carried out and we hope that it will happen with

         25  your support, because it is a good idea to have
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          2  vouchers through programs at the same cost of care

          3  as the contracted slots.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I think that

          5  that was our idea because I think that is Council

          6  money that had terms and conditions attached to it;

          7  is that right?

          8                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Right.

          9                 Deputy Commissioner Helen Stirling

         10  stated that we now have about 1,500 children in

         11  family day care homes funded by ACD vouchers, and

         12  another 800 by OES TREs, we must face up to the fact

         13  that these children will be at risk in these

         14  uninspected, unmonitored homes until Intro. 291 is

         15  passed and fully implemented.

         16                 Friends, it is simply unacceptable

         17  that the quality and safety, and that is really the

         18  bottom line, of a child's care in subsidized family

         19  day care in New York City, depends on how that child

         20  happens to be paid for.

         21                 First class care for the child who

         22  happens to get contract family day care, and second

         23  class care for the child who happens to get paid by

         24  ACD vouchers or OES TREs. That is why we strongly

         25  support Intro. 291.
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          2                 We, the leaders of New York City,

          3  must finally take the responsibility to support the

          4  needs of all of our City's children and help move

          5  them to future educational and professional success.

          6  That is really what it is all about.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          8                 So, you fully support 291-A, but you

          9  are also asking the Council to try to initiate some

         10  kind of study or program that would raise the

         11  reimbursement to the networks?

         12                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: So that there is

         13  actual payment for the services provided and of

         14  course expanded --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Are you trying

         16  to increase the rate of the payment? I mean, it

         17  would seem to me 291 would see that everybody gets

         18  paid, 291-A, but you are also asking that we do

         19  whatever we can to effect the state's market rate

         20  survey.

         21                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Right. In a positive

         22  way for New York City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay, thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: This is so

          3  complicated and it seems to me, I mean it is so

          4  frustrating for everybody involved in the question

          5  of child care, because it is reminding me of

          6  restaurants that are in buildings in my district

          7  that were built when those buildings were

          8  residential hotels and they are called accessory

          9  restaurants, and they are not really legal

         10  restaurants because you are supposed to go through

         11  the lobby of the building to get to the restaurant

         12  and the restaurant is supposed to serve 80 percent

         13  of the people who live there. But they are now

         14  free-standing restaurants, some of them are discos,

         15  Cafe Des Artiste, all of these fancy restaurants.

         16                 Anyway, they are called accessory

         17  restaurants, and it seems to me that child care has

         18  always been looked at as an accessory to something

         19  else, and that we are compounding it now. You want

         20  the women to go to work so you have to find a way to

         21  take care of the kids, and instead of looking at how

         22  fundamental child care is, and the importance and

         23  the quality of it, and the availability of it. So,

         24  we are stuck with all of these different funding

         25  streams that have different regulations or something
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          2  because they were created as an accessory to

          3  something else and that is what we have to work

          4  with. And it is deliberately so complicated that we

          5  don't understand it.

          6                 I always applaud the advocates who

          7  come, because they seem to be able to understand it

          8  better.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Madame Chair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can I ask

         12  another sort of uneducated question?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The providers,

         15  are they all not-for-profit, are they some

         16  for-profit, are they all for-profit?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They can try to

         18  make money, can't they?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I mean, what is

         20  the breakdown in terms of how many are for-profit or

         21  how many are not-for profit?

         22                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: They could try but

         23  it is almost -- for non-profits it is almost a loss

         24  for providers. Considering what they probably put in

         25  in out-of-pocket expense.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes, but the

          3  providers can have formal institutions, that we call

          4  child care centers, right, so that is a whole

          5  structure, and that can be for-profit or non-profit.

          6                 Then you have got family day care

          7  providers and then you have got the informal day

          8  care.

          9                 The family day care providers are now

         10  even looked to as a source of employment but it is

         11  always low employment because they make so little

         12  money and child care workers, who are educated and

         13  have degrees, also make so little money because it

         14  is such an expensive proposition and it is very hard

         15  to make a profit out of it.

         16                 But there are chains, there are

         17  national profit-making chains. I don't know if they

         18  provide subsidized child care, they probably prefer

         19  not to because it is easier to, you know, to do

         20  child care and get fully paid.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, your

         22  organization is the 501C3, or it is considered a

         23  for-profit?

         24                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: It is

         25  non-for-profit. We are ACD-funded, fully funded. We
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          2  are a non-for-profit and we are part of

          3  Williamsburg, Brooklyn and we also service Bushwick.

          4  It is almost by definition we are non-profit.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But I mean, are

          6  you a 501C3? Legally are you a 501C3?

          7                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Is that what we are,

          8  Sandy?

          9                 MS. SOCOLAR: The City cannot enter

         10  into a contract with any for-profit organization.

         11  That is a requirement under the Charter.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That is the

         13  heart, the essence of my question.

         14                 MS. SOCOLAR: Yes. So, all of the

         15  child care agencies that have contracts are --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Are 501C3s.

         17                 MS. SOCOLAR: -- Non-profit

         18  organizations.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         20                 MS. SOCOLAR: You can get a voucher if

         21  you are a proprietary for-profit.

         22                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: I just want to add

         23  that for providers that are just taking voucher

         24  slots, we are trying as best as we can, since it

         25  doesn't seem to be in any way that Nuestros Ninos is
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          2  a conduit to ensure that a provider is getting some

          3  kind of reimbursement from the parent whose child is

          4  in that home. And they are having a very difficult

          5  time. At this point it is still an unstable system

          6  of support for children, that way also.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Penelope.

          8                 MS. PI-SUNYER: One more piece of

          9  information on it. The providers themselves are free

         10  standing, they are not employees of anybody. They

         11  are not employees of his organization or of

         12  anybody's. They get paid per child that comes in.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Would you

         14  identify yourself.

         15                 MS. PI-SUNYER: Excuse me. I am

         16  Penelope Pi-Sunyer, and I am the Director of the

         17  Neighborhood Networks for Family Child Care at

         18  United Neighborhood Houses.

         19                 MR. OPPENHEIMER: Just to add to that,

         20  that is why in the legislation they are referred to

         21  as affiliated providers. They are not employees.

         22  They affiliate with a network.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Who is going to

         24  go next?

         25                 MS. CHARLEP: Hi. My name is Meagan
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          2  Charlep, and I run the Safe House in Montifiore

          3  Medical Center and I also organized a nursery school

          4  way back when and have been a parent of four and I

          5  had three foster kids myself, so I know a little bit

          6  about children. A little bit. But what I am here

          7  just to talk about briefly, since I am a new recruit

          8  and I am a little bit over my head in this topic, is

          9  the implication of home safety, since all of the

         10  children at the Safe House that I see and the kids I

         11  see in clinics come to us because they have some

         12  environmental disease, they are either lead

         13  poisoned, they are asthmatic, had some type of

         14  exposure to other toxins in the home. And I just

         15  wanted to say a couple of points.

         16                 One thing is, a lot of times the

         17  accuracy of reporting are the well-intentioned

         18  person in their home, in her home, is not accurate,

         19  even with full intention to be accurate. People

         20  often live in conditions where they don't notice any

         21  more kind of deterioration that is around them. They

         22  don't notice anymore that the bathroom pipe is

         23  falling and flaking. They don't notice that, yes,

         24  they have window guards, by the way the stoppers are

         25  off, so they lift the window up and the likelihood
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          2  of falling is just as great as if they didn't have

          3  those window guards. And so children end up being

          4  exposed to types of dangers, the clasp on the poison

          5  cabinet under the sink doesn't really work, and the

          6  two-year-old could pull it apart and open the

          7  cabinet.

          8                 I am saying it is there, I think it

          9  is there. I hear the tweep tweep tweep of the

         10  battery in my smoke detector, but if you ask me do I

         11  have a smoke detector, I can tell you in all honesty

         12  yes I do, and so there is a lot of unintentional

         13  falsification of self-reporting which puts kids at

         14  risk and we see this over and over again at the

         15  clinic.

         16                 I wanted to also add that in home day

         17  care you have the problem of the fact that you as a

         18  resident of a building don't have a child within a

         19  certain age bracket of the law, you can't complain

         20  to your landlord on behalf of your business.

         21                 So, for example, for Local Law 1, if

         22  I don't have any kids under six in residence, and I

         23  have peeling paint in my home and I know that it

         24  could be dangerous to this kid, it is not my

         25  landlord's responsibility to do the scraping,
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          2  painting an removal, because Local Law 1 only covers

          3  for residential, and the same with window guards.

          4                 If I don't have a ten-year-old or

          5  younger in my home that is my resident, then it

          6  behooves the day car provider to make those repairs,

          7  and if the day care provider doesn't have the

          8  resources to make those repairs, maybe a landlord

          9  will do it on an A violation, but you know, we can't

         10  get them to comply with the C violation and a lot of

         11  times it is hard to get the A violation, therefore,

         12  that person, the business person needs to have those

         13  resources available to make her environment

         14  kid-safe.

         15                 I wanted to just talk a little bit

         16  about asthma. Asthma is a disease that we know has a

         17  very high prevalence, in the Bronx, in certain

         18  neighborhoods we are between one in four and one in

         19  five kids with active asthma, they have a diagnosis

         20  and they have symptoms of asthma within this year.

         21  That is an incredible percentage, it's 20, 25

         22  percent, probably about seven times higher than the

         23  nation. But my point is this: Each child has a list

         24  of triggers that is a problem that affects that

         25  child's respiratory system. Usually in a home
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          2  environment the parent has figured out or the

          3  parents have figured out, oh, yes, my kid it is

          4  cats, or my kid it is dust, or my kid it is the

          5  roaches and my kid it is exercise, or my kid it is a

          6  cold, or each one kind of knows, but once you glom a

          7  bunch of kids into a common area, it is hard for the

          8  provider to get the different lists of asthma

          9  triggers for all of the different children in her

         10  care.

         11                 A trained home inspector can kind of

         12  have that mental checklist of various things that do

         13  often trigger asthma and make sure that the home is

         14  safe for that child. So these are all factors.

         15                 And in terms of cost savings, well,

         16  of course it is obvious that one lead poisoning, one

         17  chelation, when we put a kid in the hospital, it is

         18  about a thousand bucks a day, a little bit more.

         19  Chelation is five days usually.

         20                 For example, now we have a child in

         21  the Safe House that had a 79 lead. That child was

         22  chelated, the leads came down to 54 and now she is

         23  going to go back for a second chelation. So you are

         24  looking at $10,000 right there. That is not even the

         25  follow-up care, that is not any other, speech delay,
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          2  any other intervention for special education, et

          3  cetera.

          4                 These are big costs so prevention is

          5  the name of the game. The same thing, an asthmatic

          6  kid you are talking about a thousand, twelve-hundred

          7  dollars a day for one hospitalization, one day,

          8  again prevention is the name of the game. So, put

          9  your money up front, keep kids healthy, they do

         10  better academically and we all do better as

         11  taxpayers, and that is what I wanted to add.

         12                 Thanks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Sandy.

         16                 MS. SOCOLAR: I am awfully grateful

         17  Meagan Charlep was able to come because I think the

         18  key issue between the Administration and the City

         19  Council right this minute is a question of cost. It

         20  seems to the City Administration that it is

         21  excessive to spend an additional eight dollars or

         22  hopefully $16 more than the market rate to have

         23  these homes thoroughly inspected, screened, the

         24  providers screened as to their appropriateness to

         25  care for children, their homes be inspected and
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          2  brought into full compliance and then monitored on

          3  an ongoing basis so that they know that the children

          4  are getting the kind of care they need.

          5                 The thing that the City

          6  Administration is not taking into account is that

          7  you offer family day care homes, a list of people

          8  who filled out an application form, that there is

          9  actually no more assurance that that home is safe

         10  than if it was an informal provider, because nobody

         11  has inspected the home and the person has an

         12  in-place incentive to say yes to all of the right

         13  questions, because if they don't the registration

         14  application will not be affected.

         15                 They are talking about expanding

         16  child care to meet the need for welfare to work, 100

         17  percent, everybody must work a nominal 35-hour week,

         18  that it obviously is going to require added child

         19  care and family day care is the least expensive kind

         20  of regulated care to add.

         21                 The problem is that they cannot force

         22  a parent to place her child in a situation that this

         23  parent does not feel she can trust, and

         24  automatically the reaction as the parent is going to

         25  be rather than take someone off this list of totally
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          2  unknown people who nominally have filled out a form

          3  and are nominally regulated, I will work out some

          4  arrangement, any kind of arrangement with a person I

          5  can who I trust. And so Commissioner Hoover, who is

          6  very concerned about how unstable or how likely

          7  informal care is to break down, but more than that

          8  is open to having collusion between the parent and

          9  the provider dividing up this take. He would

         10  infinitely prefer to have people in, children in

         11  regulated care, but regulated care that a parent

         12  knows nothing about, except that the name is on a

         13  list, is something that these parents are simply not

         14  going to accept and in the end they will end up

         15  working out some arrangement for informal care which

         16  will break down, and it will break out the whole

         17  effort of that parent to move from welfare into

         18  self-support.

         19                 One of the things that I was thinking

         20  the City ought to consider in terms of hidden costs

         21  of not enacting and implementing this bill is that a

         22  child of a poor family, very poor children are three

         23  times as likely to be in poor health than children

         24  who are not poor, and that means that anything we

         25  can do to help oversee the child's health needs and
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          2  ensure that they are getting the attention they

          3  need, early identification of developmental

          4  problems, is going to in the longrun enable not only

          5  that child to grow up to be an effective person, but

          6  it is going to affect the parent's ability to stay

          7  on whatever job she is able to get and not have to

          8  go back on welfare.

          9                 A simple thing like Commissioner

         10  Hoover saying, oh, one advantage about informal care

         11  is you do not have to delay making the person start

         12  their work assignment in order to get the child

         13  immunized, failure to immunize the children can lead

         14  to measles and mumps, the current rate of

         15  immunization for children under age two, I checked

         16  with the Health Department yesterday, we are only at

         17  the point where 79 percent of the children at age

         18  two have had all of the immunizations that they are

         19  supposed to have had, and measles and hooping cough

         20  can lead not only to days and days of absence for

         21  the parent, and maybe if there is a second child

         22  then a few days later they will be absent again for

         23  the second child having caught the disease, but it

         24  can lead to encephalitis and brain damage and

         25  long-term handicapping conditions that mean that
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          2  that parent and that child have a very, very

          3  blighted future.

          4                 Two-thirds of the children who go

          5  into special ed go into special education between

          6  kindergarten and second grade, and anything we can

          7  do to have children identified early as needing

          8  early intervention services, hopefully will save

          9  them from having to go into a special education

         10  preschool, a special education program at age three,

         11  which can cost $21,000 to $24,000 per child. Those

         12  kinds of hidden costs or the cost of being held back

         13  in school one grade costs the City $8,000. The cost

         14  of special education, if that child has not been

         15  helped in the early years, the cost of special

         16  education from kindergarten through high school is

         17  $100,000. And I think that the City Administration

         18  is following a self-defeating policy by claiming

         19  that adding the small amount of funds to have these

         20  programs do this careful screening and constant

         21  ongoing oversight and supervision of the children's

         22  needs, it is not cost-effective.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Does anybody have any questions?
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          2                 No. Well, thank you.

          3                 Is there anybody else who wants to

          4  testify?

          5                 Thank you. I hope that this has been

          6  an informative session, that we have a grasp of what

          7  the problem is and what our legislation is and that

          8  we are going to be able to move onto voting on a

          9  bill, and I hope the next meeting of this Committee

         10  will do that and we will be available to people for

         11  when we might be able to have a hearing to vote on a

         12  bill.

         13                 Thank you very much for coming.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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